

**ADOPTED REGULATION OF THE
SPEECH-LANGUAGE PATHOLOGY, AUDIOLOGY AND
HEARING AID DISPENSING BOARD**

LCB File No. R050-15

Effective April 4, 2016

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§1, 2, 5, 6 and 11-14, section 17 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2296; §§3 and 8-10, NRS 637B.160, as amended by section 47 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2305, and sections 17 and 18 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2296; §4, NRS 637B.100, as amended by sections 44 and 44.5 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at pages 2303 and 2304, and section 17 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2296; §7, NRS 637B.160 and 637B.230, as amended by sections 47 and 51, respectively, of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at pages 2305 and 2307, and sections 17 and 18 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2296.

A REGULATION relating to professions; revising the requirements to apply for, renew, reinstate or change the status of a license to engage in the practice of audiology, speech-language pathology or fitting and dispensing hearing aids; updating certain terms to conform with existing law; providing for the expiration of a standard or provisional license; repealing the adoption by reference of certain standards for ethical conduct; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

In addition to an active license to engage in the practice of audiology, speech-language pathology or fitting and dispensing hearing aids, existing law establishes limited, provisional and temporary licenses to practice those professions. (NRS 637B.200, as amended by section 50 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2306; Sections 21 and 22 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2297) **Section 2** of this regulation defines the term “standard license” to mean a license to engage in the practice of audiology, speech-language pathology or fitting and dispensing hearing aids that is not a provisional license, a temporary license or a limited license.

Assembly Bill No. 115 of the 78th Legislative Session combined the Board of Hearing Aid Specialists with the Board of Examiners for Audiology and Speech Pathology to create the Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board. (NRS 637B.100, as amended by section 44 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2303; section 72 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2322) **Section 4** of this regulation updates the definition of “Board” to reflect this change. **Sections 5, 6 and 11-13** of this regulation make conforming changes.

Existing law requires the Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board to evaluate the qualifications and determine the eligibility of an applicant for a license to engage in the practice of audiology, speech-language pathology or fitting and dispensing hearing aids. (Section 17 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2296) Existing law also requires the Board to adopt regulations prescribing the manner in which such a license must be renewed. Existing law authorizes the Board to: (1) adopt regulations providing for the late renewal of a license or the reinstatement of an expired license; and (2) place a license on inactive status if the holder of the license does not engage in, or represent that he or she is engaged in, the practice of the profession for which he or she is licensed and satisfies certain continuing education requirements. (Section 18 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2296) **Section 7** of this regulation requires any person desiring licensure by the Board or desiring to renew, reinstate or convert the status of a license issued by the Board to submit a completed application and the appropriate fee to the Board. **Section 7** also removes certain provisions concerning the method that must be used to pay an application fee and the recovery of money by the Board if a personal check is returned to the Board as the result of insufficient money or a stop payment order. **Section 8** of this regulation: (1) requires an applicant for the issuance, renewal, reinstatement or change of status of a license to submit proof that he or she has met certain requirements, if applicable, with his or her application; and (2) authorizes the Board to request additional information or an oral interview of an applicant.

Section 3 of this regulation prescribes the manner in which: (1) a standard license may be converted to inactive status; (2) a standard license that has been converted to inactive status may be renewed; and (3) a standard license that is on inactive status may be converted to active status. **Section 3** also requires a licensee who holds a license that is on inactive status to comply with the requirements for continuing education that would apply if the license were on active status.

Existing law requires the Board to adopt regulations prescribing: (1) the period for which a license is valid; and (2) the manner in which a license must be renewed. (Section 18 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2296) **Section 9** of this regulation provides that each standard and provisional license expires 1 year after the date on which the license was issued. **Section 9** also requires an application to renew a license to be submitted within 30 days after the date on which the license expired. Finally, **section 9** requires an application to renew the provisional license of a hearing aid specialist for a second time to include proof that the licensee has applied to take the National Competency Examination administered by the National Board for Certification in Hearing Instrument Sciences, or its successor organization, or another comparable examination approved by the Board.

Section 10 of this regulation authorizes the holder of an expired license to apply for the reinstatement of the license within 3 years after the date on which the license expired. Existing regulations require an applicant to reinstate a license to include in the application proof that the applicant has completed at least 15 hours of continuing education approved by the Board for each year or portion of a year for which the license has been expired. (NAC 637B.0365) **Section 10** removes this requirement and instead requires the applicant to include in the application proof that the applicant: (1) has complied with the requirements for continuing education that would apply if the license were active for the year immediately preceding the date of the application; and (2) is certified as a speech-language pathologist, audiologist or hearing aid specialist, as applicable, by certain organizations that certify such professionals.

Existing regulations adopt by reference the “Code of Ethics” of the American Speech-Language-Hearing Association as the standards for ethical conduct of licensed audiologists and speech pathologists. (NAC 637B.040) **Section 14** of this regulation repeals this provision.

Section 1. Chapter 637B of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 and 3 of this regulation.

Sec. 2. *“Standard license” means a license to engage in the practice of audiology, speech-language pathology or fitting and dispensing hearing aids that is not a provisional license, a temporary license or a limited license.*

Sec. 3. 1. *A licensee who holds a standard license that is not suspended, revoked or otherwise restricted may convert his or her license to inactive status by submitting with his or her application to renew the license:*

(a) A written request to convert the license to inactive status; and

(b) An attestation that he or she will no longer practice or represent to others that he or she is authorized to engage in the practice of audiology, speech-language pathology or fitting and dispensing hearing aids in this State after the license has been converted to inactive status.

2. A licensee who holds a standard license that is on inactive status shall comply with the requirements for continuing education that apply to a licensee who holds a standard license that is on active status.

3. *A standard license that is on inactive status must be renewed in the manner prescribed in NAC 637B.035, 637B.0355 and 637B.036.*

4. *A person may convert the status of a standard license from inactive to active at any time by submitting to the Board a written request, an application pursuant to NAC 637B.035 and any materials required pursuant to NAC 637B.0355.*

Sec. 4. NAC 637B.0025 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.0025 “Board” means the ~~Board of Examiners for Audiology and Speech~~ *Speech-Language Pathology* ~~+~~, *Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board.*

Sec. 5. NAC 637B.003 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.003 “Client” means a person who receives services from an audiologist ~~for speech~~, *speech-language* pathologist ~~+~~ *or hearing aid specialist.*

Sec. 6. NAC 637B.0045 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.0045 “Licensee” means any person who holds a license as an audiologist ~~for speech~~, *speech-language* pathologist *or hearing aid specialist* pursuant to chapter 637B of NRS.

Sec. 7. NAC 637B.035 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.035 1. *Any person seeking licensure by the Board or seeking to renew, reinstate or change the type of a license issued by the Board must submit a completed application on a form provided by the Board.*

2. Each ~~completed~~ application ~~for a license as an audiologist or speech pathologist~~ *submitted pursuant to subsection 1* must be accompanied by payment of ~~the appropriate~~ *any* fee ~~If the payment is in the form of a check or money order, the check or money order must be payable to the “Board of Examiners for Audiology and Speech Pathology.”~~

~~2. The Board will accept payment of fees in the following forms:~~

~~—(a) Personal check;~~

~~—(b) Money order;~~

~~—(c) Cashier's check; and~~

~~—(d) Credit card.~~

~~—3. The Board will not accept payment of fees in cash.~~

~~—4. The Board may recover any charge from a financial institution for a personal check returned to the Board as the result of insufficient money in the account from which the check is drawn or due to a stop-payment order on the check. Not later than 15 days after receiving notice from the Board, the person who submitted the check as payment shall remit to the Board an amount equal to the amount of the original check plus the amount of the charge.]~~ *prescribed by NAC 637B.030.*

Sec. 8. NAC 637B.0355 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.0355 1. An applicant who is required to provide the Board with:

(a) An official transcript ~~{for the purpose of obtaining a license as an audiologist or speech pathologist}~~ *from an educational program* shall ensure that a sealed, official transcript is:

(1) Attached to his or her application; or

(2) Sent directly from the educational ~~{institution}~~ *program* to the Board.

(b) Proof satisfactory of his or her certification by the American Board of Audiology , ~~{or}~~ the American Speech-Language-Hearing Association ~~{}~~ *or the National Board for Certification in Hearing Instrument Sciences*, or a successor organization, shall ensure that a copy of the certification is:

(1) Attached to his or her application; or

(2) Sent directly from the certifying organization to the Board.

(c) Proof ~~{satisfactory of his or her clinical competency shall ensure that such proof is sent directly to the Board on a form provided by the Board.~~

~~—(d) Proof satisfactory that he or she passed an examination approved by the Board shall ensure that such proof is sent directly to the Board by the entity that administered the examination.~~

~~—(e) Proof satisfactory of his or her current employment shall ensure that such proof is provided to the Board.~~

~~—(f) Proof satisfactory of the completion of any requirements for continuing education shall ensure that such proof is provided to the Board.}]~~ *of a license obtained in another state, territory or country shall provide such proof for any license presently held and any license held during the 5 years immediately preceding the date of application.*

2. If an applicant ~~{holds or has held a valid license from another state or territory in the United States, the applicant shall ensure that:~~

~~—(a) A copy of each license is attached to his or her application; and~~

~~—(b) Verification of each license held during the 5 years immediately preceding the date of application is sent directly to the Board by the licensing authority.}]~~ *is required to pass an*

examination or complete continuing education for the issuance, renewal, reinstatement or to change the type of a license, the applicant must provide to the Board with his or her application proof that he or she has passed the examination or completed the continuing education, as applicable.

3. An applicant shall include with his or her application any additional information that the Board may require . ~~{for the purpose of reviewing an application.}]~~

4. After an application is submitted to the Board, the Board may require an applicant to provide additional information or appear before the Board or one of its members for an oral interview before issuing, renewing, reinstating or converting the status of a license.

Sec. 9. NAC 637B.036 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.036 *1. Each standard and provisional license issued by the Board, including, without limitation, each standard license that has been converted to inactive status, expires 1 year after the date on which the license was issued.*

2. An application to renew a license will not be approved unless the application is submitted not later than 30 days after the date on which the license expired.

*3. An application for renewal of a license as an audiologist and a license as a ~~speech~~ *speech-language* pathologist may be submitted on a single application.*

4. An application for the renewal of a provisional license as a hearing aid specialist for a second time must include proof that the licensee has applied to take the National Competency Examination administered by the National Board for Certification in Hearing Instrument Sciences, or its successor organization, or another comparable examination approved by the Board.

Sec. 10. NAC 637B.0365 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.0365 *1. An applicant for reinstatement of his or her license shall include with the application for reinstatement:*

(a) Proof satisfactory that the applicant has completed ~~at least 15 hours of~~ the continuing education ~~approved by the Board for each year or portion of a year for which the license has been expired.~~ that is required of a licensee for the year immediately preceding the application for reinstatement.

(b) The fees imposed by the Board pursuant to NRS 637B.230 , *as amended by section 51 of Assembly Bill No. 115, chapter 404, Statutes of Nevada 2015, at page 2307*, for the reinstatement of a license.

(c) Proof satisfactory of his or her certification by the American Board of Audiology, the American Speech-Language-Hearing Association or the National Board for Certification in Hearing Instrument Sciences or a successor organization, as applicable.

2. The reinstatement of a license that has been expired for 30 days or more must not be retroactive. ~~The reinstatement becomes effective on the date of the approval of the application for reinstatement.~~

3. An application to reinstate a license must be submitted not later than 3 years after the date on which the license expired.

Sec. 11. NAC 637B.038 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.038 1. A licensee shall not *engage in the* practice *of* audiology ~~for speech~~ , *speech-language* pathology *or fitting and dispensing hearing aids* under any name under which the licensee does not hold a license issued by the Board.

2. If a licensee changes his or her legal name after the issuance of his or her license, the licensee shall submit a copy of a marriage certificate or court decree to the Board not later than 30 days after the change. The Board will, upon receiving sufficient evidence that a licensee has changed his or her legal name, issue a new license with the licensee's legal name thereon.

3. The Board may issue a duplicate license to any licensee who certifies that his or her license has been lost or destroyed.

Sec. 12. NAC 637B.090 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.090 All formal written communications and documents must be addressed to the Board ~~of Examiners for Audiology and Speech Pathology~~ and not to individual members of the Board or its staff.

Sec. 13. NAC 637B.201 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.201 1. When an investigation of an informal complaint conducted pursuant to NAC 637B.191 is complete, the staff, and investigator, if any, shall determine whether substantial evidence exists to sustain the alleged violation of a statute or regulation set forth in the informal complaint.

2. If the staff, and investigator, if any, determine that no allegation of a violation of a statute or regulation set forth in the informal complaint can be sustained, the staff shall notify, in writing, the complainant and the respondent of this determination.

3. If the staff, and investigator, if any, determine that a violation of a statute or regulation as alleged in the informal complaint can be sustained, the legal counsel for the Board shall:

(a) In compliance with NRS 622.330, offer mediation, settlement agreements, stipulations of facts and liability or informal hearings; or

(b) Prepare a notice of hearing and a formal complaint.

4. A notice of hearing and a formal complaint must:

(a) Be a plain statement of the facts and applicable provisions of statutes and regulations regarding the alleged acts of the respondent alleged to be in violation of the statutes and regulations governing the practice of audiology ~~and speech~~, *speech-language* pathology ~~;~~ *and fitting and dispensing hearing aids;*

(b) Include the date, time and place that the Board will hear the matter, if this information is known at the time when the notice of hearing and a formal complaint are sent to the respondent; and

(c) Be signed by the legal counsel for the Board and, if a member of the Board was active in the investigation, by that member of the Board.

5. The staff shall send a notice of hearing and a formal complaint prepared pursuant to subsection 4 to the respondent by certified mail.

Sec. 14. NAC 637B.040 is hereby repealed.

TEXT OF REPEALED SECTION

637B.040 Adoption by reference of “Code of Ethics.” (NRS 637B.150, 637B.220)

1. The “Code of Ethics” of the American Speech-Language-Hearing Association, in effect on January 1, 2003, is hereby adopted by reference as the standards for ethical conduct of licensed audiologists and speech pathologists, except wherever the word “individual” appears, insert the word “licensee” in lieu thereof.

2. A copy of the Code may be obtained at no charge:

(a) From the State of Nevada, Board of Examiners for Audiology and Speech Pathology, P.O. Box 70550, Reno, Nevada 89570-0550; or

(b) By telephone at (775) 857-3500.

**LEGISLATIVE REVIEW OF ADOPTED REGULATIONS AS REQUIRED BY NRS
233B.066**

LCB FILE R050-15

The following statement is submitted for adopted amendments to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) Chapter 637B.

1. A clear and concise explanation of the need for the adopted regulation.

Assembly Bill No. 115 of the 78th Legislative Session combined the Board of Hearing Aid Specialists with the Board of Examiners for Audiology and Speech Pathology to create the Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board.

The need and purpose of the proposed regulation is to protect the public health, safety and welfare by ensuring that only qualified and competent speech-language pathologists, audiologists and hearing aid specialists are licensed in the state.

The proposed regulation will provide clarity for the public, individuals and licensees through regulation regarding requirements to apply for, renew, reinstate or change the status of a license to practice speech-language pathology, audiology or fitting and dispensing of hearing aids; prescribe the date on which active and provisional licenses expires; update the definition of “Board” to reflect the new name and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

2. A description of how public comment was solicited, a summary of public response, and an explanation of how other interested persons may obtain a copy of the summary.

Copies of the proposed regulation, notices of workshops and notices of intent to act upon the regulation were sent by U.S. mail to persons who were known to have an interest in speech-language pathology, audiology and the fitting and dispensing of hearing aids as well as any persons who had specifically requested such notice. These documents were also made available at the website of the Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board, www.nvaud-sp.org, mailed to all county libraries in Nevada and posted at the following locations:

Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board
Administrative Office
6160 Mae Anne Ave., Suite 3, Reno, Nevada 89523
Office of the Attorney General, 100 North Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada 89701
Office of the Attorney General, 5420 Kietzke Lane, Ste 202, Reno, Nevada 89511
Office of the Attorney General, Grant Sawyer State Office Building,
555 E. Washington Avenue #3900, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Washoe County Court House, 75 Court Street, Reno, Nevada 89520
Washoe County Clerk, 1001 E. 9th St. Bldg A, P.O. Box 30083, Reno, Nevada 89502

A Workshop was held to solicit comments on the proposed regulations on November 21, 2015. There were ten (10) individuals representing small business and the public in attendance at the workshop, no written comments were received. Thereafter, on or about December 18, 2015, a Notice of Intent to Act Upon Regulations was issued.

A Public Hearing was held on January 23, 2016; oral comments were heard; there were no written comments received.

A copy of this summary of the public response to the adopted regulation may be obtained from the Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board, P.O. Box 34540, Reno, Nevada 89533-4540, 775-787-3421, or email to board@nvspeechhearing.org.

3. The number of persons who:

- (a) **Attended each workshop:** Las Vegas, November 21, 2015 10
- (b) **Attended public hearing:** Las Vegas, January 23, 2016 4
- (c) **Testified at hearing:** Las Vegas, January 23, 2016 0
- (d) **Submitted written comments:** 0

4. For each person identified in paragraphs (b) and (c) of number 3 above, the following information if provided to the agency conducting the hearing:

- (a) **Name;** Paula Berkley
- (b) **Telephone number;** 775-323-7430
- (c) **Business address;** 908 Nixon Ave, Reno, NV 89502
- (d) **Business telephone number;** 775-323-7430
- (e) **Electronic mail address;** paulaberkley@gmail.com
- (f) **Name of entity or organization represented.** Paula Berkley & Associates

- (a) **Name;** Renee Erno
- (b) **Telephone number;** 702-825-8008
- (c) **Business address;** 1132 Essecue, Henderson, NV 89015
- (d) **Business telephone number;**
- (e) **Electronic mail address;** reneeerno@gmail.com
- (f) **Name of entity or organization represented.** Nevada Hearing Society

- (a) **Name;** Elizabeth Meyerowitz
- (b) **Telephone number;** 520-591-6941
- (c) **Business address;** 992 Olivia Parkway, Henderson, NV 89011
- (d) **Business telephone number;**
- (e) **Electronic mail address;** elizabeth.meyerowitz@nsc.edu
- (f) **Name of entity or organization represented.** Nevada State College

- (a) **Name;** Charles Adams
- (b) **Telephone number;** 702-456-1110
- (c) **Business address;** 3280 E. Tropicana Ste C, Las Vegas, NV 89121
- (d) **Business telephone number;**
- (e) **Electronic mail address;** vkadams@cox.net

(f) Name of entity or organization represented.

5. A description of how comment was solicited from affected businesses, a summary of their response, and an explanation how other interested persons may obtain a copy of the summary.

Comments were solicited from affected businesses in the same manner as they were solicited from the public. No comments were received from businesses.

A copy of this summary of the public response to the adopted regulations may be obtain from the Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board, P.O. Box 34540, Reno, Nevada 89533-4540, 775-787-3421, or email to board@nvspeechhearing.org.

6. If the regulation was adopted without changing any part of the proposed regulation, a summary of the reasons for adopting the regulation without change.

The Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board adopted the regulation on January 23, 2016 and included all of the changes suggested at the workshop on November 21, 2015 and Public Hearing on January 23, 2016.

7. The estimated economic effect of the adopted regulation on the businesses which it is to regulate and on the public. These must be stated separately, and each case must include:

- (a) Both adverse and beneficial effects; and**
- (b) Both immediate and long-term effects.**

(a) Both adverse and beneficial effects

There will be no adverse economic effect of these adopted regulations on the businesses which it is to regulate (speech-language pathologists, audiologists, hearing aid specialists) or the public. The adopted regulations will benefit the speech-language pathology, audiology and hearing aid dispensing practitioners and the public by providing clarity to the regulations.

(b) Both immediate and long-term effects.

Direct effect will be to improve and clarify existing law and regulatory requirements. Businesses may experience the indirect effect of having more knowledgeable practitioners.

Long-term effect will be clarity and consistency in regulation and licensing of speech-language pathologist, audiologist and hearing aid specialists in Nevada.

8. The estimated cost to the agency for enforcement of the adopted regulations.

There are no additional costs involved in the enforcement of these adopted regulations.

9. A description of any regulations of other state or government agencies which the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates and a statement explaining why the

duplication or overlapping is necessary. If the regulation overlaps or duplicates a federal regulation, the name of the regulating federal agency.

The Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board is not aware of any similar federal, state or local standards regulating speech-language pathology, audiology and hearing aid dispensing professions. These adopted regulations do not duplicate any federal, state or local standards.

10. If the regulation includes provisions that are more stringent than a federal regulation which regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions.

The Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensing Board is not aware of any similar federal regulations of the same activity in which the adopted regulations are more stringent.

11. If the regulation provides a new fee or increases an existing fee, the total annual amount the agency expects to collect and the manner in which the money will be used.

The regulation does not provide for any new or increased fees.